JUDGE ABRAMS.

PREET BHARARA

United States Attorney for the
Southern District of New York
Attorney for the United States of America
By: ARASTU K. CHAUDHURY
Assistant United States Attorney

86 Chambers Street, 3 Floor

New York, New York 10007

Tel.: (212) 637-2633

Fax: (212) 637-2750

E-mail: arastu.chaudhury@usdoj.gov

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

V. : FILED UNDER SEAL

ANY AND ALL RADIO STATION :
TRANSMISSION EQUIPMENT, RADIO : No. 14 -
FREQUENCY POWER AMPLIFIERS,

RADIO FREQUENCY TEST :
EQUIPMENT AND ANY OTHER : VERIFIED COMPLAINT IN REM
EQUIPMENT ASSOCIATED WITHOR :

USED IN CONNECTION WITH THE

RADIO TRANSMISSIONS ON THE

FREQUENCIES OF 94.5 MHZ AND

94.9 MHZ LOCATED IN APARTMENT

32N AT 1370 SAINT NICHOLAS

AVENUE, NEW YORK, NEW YORK

10033, AND PREMISES LOCATED AT

80-84 WEST 181 STREET, BRONX,

NEW YORK 10453,

Defendants-In-Rem.

The United States of America, by its attorney, Preet Bharara, United States Attorney for

the Southern District of New York, alleges upon information and belief as follows:



PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Plaintiff brings this action in rem to forfeit and to condemn to the use of the .
United States of America, pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 510, any and all radio station transmission
equipment, radio frequency power amplifiers, radio frequency test equipment and any other
equipment associated with or used in connection with any radio transmissions on the frequency
of 94.5 Megahertz (“MHz”) and 94.9 MHZ from or in the vicinity of Apartment 32N at 1370
Saint Nicholas Avenue, New York, New York 10033, and the one-story commercial building at
80 West 181 Street, Bronx New York 10453 (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant Radio
Station Equipment”), which are being used in violation of 47 U.S.C. § 301,

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1345 and
1355 and 47 U.S.C. § 510.

3. Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1395(b).

4. The Defendant Radio Station Equipment is located within the jurisdiction of this
Court.
STATUTORY BACKGROUND
5. The Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC”) is an independent federal

regulatory agency created by Congress to regulate intrastate, interstate, and foreign radio
communications pursuant to the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act™), 47
U.S.C. § 151 et seq.

6. Section 301 of the Act, 47 U.S.C. § 301, prohibits the operation of any apparatus

for the transmission of energy, communications, or signals by radio from one place in the United
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States to another place in the United States, except under and in accordance with the Act and
with a license for that purpose granted under the provisions of the Act.

7. The only exception to this licensing requirement is for certain low-power radio
transmitters operating at a power level that complies with Section 15.239(b) of Title 47 of the
Code of Federal Regulations (the “CFR”). Section 15.239(b) of the CFR limits FM transmitters
to a field strength of 250 microvolts at a distance of three meters from the transmitting antenna.

8. Pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 510, any electronic, electromagnetic, radio frequency, or
similar device, or component thereof, used with willful and knowing intent to violate 47 U.S.C.
§ 301, may be seized and forfeited to the United States of America.

FACTS

9, On December 1, 2011, the New York Office received a complaint concerning
possible unlicensed radio stations operating in the New York City area on 94.5 MHz and 94.9
MHz. See Ex. 1. That complaint reported that the studio for the unlicensed radio stations is -
located at 80 W 181% Street in Bronx, N'Y 10453, but the equipment transmitting the signals for
those stations was located in another building in New York City. See Ex. 1.

INDENTIFYING THE LOCATION OF THE RADIO SIGNALS

10. On March 5, 2012, FCC agents conducted an investigation and determined that
the signals on 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz were emanating from either a building at 1370 Saint
Nicholas Avenue in New York, New York 10033, or the adjacent building at 260 Audubon
Avenue. The FCC database showed no license issued for an FM radio station on 94.5 MHz or
94.9 MHz at either 1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue or 260 Audubon Avenue. That same day, the

FCC agents also determined that the signals emanating from that source exceeded the signal




strength allowed under FCC’s rules for non-licensed transmitters by 8,811 times the legal limit
for 94.5 MHz and 9,130‘ times the legal limit for 94.9 MHz. See Ex. 2.

1 ] On June 18, 2012, FCC agents positively identified the source of the signals on
94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz as 1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue. With the assistance of the building
manager, the FCC agents were able to observe the antennas associated with the unlicensed
stations on 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz in blue plastic crates on the balcony of Apartment # 32N at
1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue, and confirmed that the signals on 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz were
emanaﬁng from those antennas. The FCC agénts knocked on the door of Apartment # 32N, but
no one answered. They took field strength measurements and determined that the signal strength
exceeded the legal limit by 8,556 times the legal limit for 94.5 MHz and 8,967 times the legal
limit for 94.9 MHz. The FCC then agents posted a Notice of Unlicensed Radio Operation on the
door of Apartment # 32N warning that operation of unlicensed broadcast stations violates federal
law and outlining the potential penalties for such a violation. See Ex. 3.

12. On or about June 19, 2012, FCC agents contacted building management at 1370
Saint Nicholas Avenue, and determined that Raul De La Rosa was the lessee of Apartment #
32N. See Ex. 4.

13. On February 2, 2013, FCC agents returned to 1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue and
observed that the antennas were still located in blue crates on the balcony of Apartment # 32N,
and that both the stations continued operations. The FCC agents determined that signals
emanating from the antennas exceeded the legal limit by 8,859 times the legal limit for 94.5
MHZ and by 8,911 times the legal limit for 94.9 MHz. See Ex. 6.

14. On May 3, 2013, an FCC agent returned to 1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue and

found that the stations on 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz were still transmitting, The FCC agent again
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=-defermined that the signals emanating from the antennas exceed the legal limit, this time by
2,846 times the legal limit for 94.5 MHz and by 5,168 times the legal limits for 94.9 MHz. See
Ex. 7. | |

15.  That same day, the FCC agent noted that the station operating on 94.5 MHz was
identified as RIKA FM and the station operating on 94.9 MHz was identified as ACTIVA FM.
The programming heard on the station operating on 94.5 MHz could also be heard on the
Internet at www.rikafm.com with an approximate 30-second delay between the programming
heard on the Internet and the over-the-air transmissions héard on 94.5 MHz. The programming

“heard on the station operating on »94.9 MHz could not be heard on the Internet.

16, On December 2, 2013, FCC agents returned to 1370 Saint Nicholas Avenue and
found that the stations on 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz were still operating. Agents took field
strength measurements of both stations, which showed that the signals emanating from the
antennas exceeded that allowed for non-licensed transmitters by 7,549 times the legal limit for
94.5 MHz and by 6,605 times the legal limit for 94.9 MHz. See Exhibit 16.

CONFIRMING THE EXISTANCE OF THE RADIO STATION STUDIO

17. On February 29, 2012, FCC agents went to 80 W. 181% Street, Bronx, New York,
and found that the building was closed. The FCC agents observed a sign on the front door of the
building that read, “RIKA MEDIA GROUP, LLC INFO: 347-603-0229 80 W 181 ST BRONX,
NY 10453.” An employee from the tire shop located next to the RIKA Media Group, LLC
office stated that the individuals associated with RIKA Media Group only worked late in the
afternoon and at night and that there was a music recording studio inside the building. See Ex. 8.

18. | On June 26, 2012, FCC agents again went to 80 W. 181 Street and found the

building closed. The agents spoke to a mailwoman who reported that, in the past, she delivered
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the mail inside the building and observed a music recording studio. More recently, the building
had been closed during »her working hours and she was told to drop the mail next door at the tire
shop. See Ex. 9.

19.  On February 28, 2013, FCC agents returned to the studio at 80 W. 181% Street.
The agents monitored 94.5 MHz and 94.9 MHz and heard transmissions com.mence at
approximately 5:00 p.m. Minutes before the transmissions started, the agents observed about
eight people enter the studio. FCC a;gents observed that the RIKA Media Group had expanded
into the space formerly occupied by the tire store. There was then also a store adjacent to RIKA
Media Gfoup called “Infinit Sound,” which sold audio equipment, cell phones and electronics.
Three phone numbers were listed on the sign posted on the front of the building: 646-377-0958 -
347-372-9365 » 347-603-0229, the last of which was the telephone number listed on the RIKA
Media Group sign that agents observed posted on.the door on February 29, 2013. See Exs. 8, 13.

20. On February 5, 2014, FCC agents returned to 80 W. 181% Street, and observed
that Infinit Sound encompasses 80-84 W. 181% Street, and the sign still listed one of the primary
contact numbers as 347-603-0229, which is associated with the RIKA Media Group. See Ex. 17.
IDENTIFYING THE OWNERS OF THE RADIO STATIONS

21.  OnNovember 6, 2012, the FCC issued a subpoena to Vonage Corporation, the
service provider for telephone number 718-305-4154, which is the telephone number that an
FCC agent observed in a YouTube video that was taken at a studio with signs visible in the video
that read, “RIKA FM 718-305-4154 RikaFM.com.” See Exs. 10, 11.

22.  On December 7, 2012, Vonage Corporation responded to the subpoena and
provided documentation indicating that the subscriber for telephone number 718-305-4154 is

Ariel Sanchez. See Ex. 11.



23.  On March 4, 2013, an FCC agent spoke to the original complainant, who
identified Ariel Sanchez as the owner of 94.5 MHz (RIKA) and 94.9 MHz (ACTIVA), which
have studios in 80 W 181% Street Bronx, NY. See Ex. 14.

24. On March 2, 2013, Michael Celenia, President of Apple Community
Broadcasting, Inc., the licensee of Translator Station W268AN in Plainview, New York, filed a
complaint with the New York Office of the FCC, reporting interference from an unlicensed
station broadcasting on 94.9 MHz. Mr. Celenza reported that an unlicensed station on 94.9 MHz
was causing interference with Apple’s reception of Translator Station W235BB, which transmits
on 94.9 MHz, and is the Translator Station from which Apple receives programming “off-air” for
rebroadcasting on Translator Station W268AN. See Ex. 15.

25. On March 25, 2013, Mr. Celenza again contacted the FCC regarding the
interference on 94.9 MHz. Mr. Celenza reported that he had called a telephone number (71 8—>
502-9987) broadcast on 94.9 MHz as part of an on-air contest, and spoke with a person, who
stated that he “leéses this frequency from another guy” and that “all he does is send his audio via
an IP address and the transmitter guy receives it and puts it on air from transmitter location.”
Exhibit 15. Mr. Celenza was then provided with another number to call (347-603-0229). Mr.
Celenza reported that when he called the second telephone number, the voicemail recording
stated that he had reached Ariel Sanchez. Mr. Celenza reported that he subsequently spoke to
Ariel Sanchez twice and each time Mr. Sanchez agreed to shut down the station. Id.

26.  Despite written warnings, the unlicensed radio stations operating on 94.5 MHz

and 94.9 MHz continue to broadcast in violation of 47 U.S.C. § 301.



27.  Because the Defendant Radio Station Equipment is being used to operate
_ unlicensed broadcast radio stations, seizure and forfeiture of the Defendant Radio Station
Equipment is necessary to prevent continuing violations of the Act,

CLAIM FOR RELIEF

28.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation set forth in pa%agraphs 1
through 25.

29.  The Defendant Radio Station Equipment was used, and continues to be used, for
illegal, unlicensed radio broadcast in violation of 47 U.S.C. § 301.

30. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendant Radio Station Equipment was, and
continues to be, used and possessed with willful and knowing intent to violate 47 U.S.C.§ 301,

and is therefore subject to forfeiture to the United States under the provisions of 47 U.S.C. § 510.



WHEREFORE, plaintiff the United States of America requests that a warrant of this
Court be issued for the arrest of the Defendant Radio Station Equipment; that the Defendant
Radio Station Equipment be forfeited and condemned to the use of the United States; and that the
plaintiff be awarded its costs and disbursements in the action and such other and further relief as
. this Court deems just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York
February 11, 2014

PREET BHARARA

United States Attorney for the

Southern District of New York

Attorney for the United States of America

ARASTU K. CHAUDHURY
Assistant United States Attorney
86 Chambers Street, 3™ Floor
New York, New York 10007
Tel.: (212) 637-2633

Fax: (212) 637-2750
arastu.chaudhury@usdoj.gov




VERIFICATION

1. I am a Federal Agent holding a position of an Electronics Engineer for the New
York Office of the Enforcement Bureau of the Federql Communications Commission (the
“FCC”).

2. [ have read the within verified complaint in rem and know the contents thereof.

3. The matters contained in the within verified complaint in rem are true and
accurate to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

4, The source of my information and the grounds for my belief are my personal
knowledge, information provided by other FCC agents, and the official files and records of the
- FCC and other federal agencies.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true, to the best of my knowledge,

information, and belief.

Dated: New York, New York
_ February 11, 2014

Luis Romaén, Electronics Engineer
New York Field Office

Enforcement Bureau

Federal Communications Commission







Exhibit 1
(2 pages)



FCC EBATS

Page 1 of |

ENFORCEMENT BUREAU ACTIVITY TRACKING SYSTEM (EBATS)

juls.roman | Staff [Flald - NER] | Logout

HOME SEARCH COWMPLAINTS INITIATIVES CASES

Summary  In Process

BacxoConpniniaLa

CGB Commonts

Administration

Assigned Tasks  Completed  New Complalnt Downloods  Help?

FORM 2000F; $1-C00350778-1

Ugor Farm o ‘—] User Form

{7 Consumer History

User Complalnt Key: 11-C00350775-1 Supmission dale: 12/01/2011
Complaint Source: Web Added User: Consumer

CONSUMER'S [NFORMATION

Furst Namo [EEERR ‘ Lost Name: -

Submission Date; Doc 1, 2011 11:20:18 P

Corrpany Numnﬂ
(Complele only If you arg Hing (his comptalnl an bohalf of a company or an organization.)

Pos! Office Box Number
Strest Audress 1. _ Stroet Address 2.

cly: Paterson B ] Zp Codo: [EFEE
Tolephono Numbar{Residontisl or Business):
E-mall AddressEE B e

FORM 2000F
1. Type of company that Is the subject of your complaint:

4 Ext

ITelophone Compony  ClWirsless Carder  [inlemot Access Service Provider
[TV or Radio Station  [JCable Campany (1 Salellite Provider {3 0ther

Plaasa provide tha dotails of your complaint, including the dates, Uimes and nature of any cenduct or aclivily complained
of and idsnifying Infarmation of eny companies, Institutons or individuals wvolved:

a,  Data {mrvddlyyyy) 120112011

b, Time. 06:00 P

c. Nams of company or individual: Rlka FM

d. Details of tho aclivity or conduel that form the basl for your camplaint

Esu omisora transmilte Hegal, Ia pronden desde fa § de Ja tarde y esta en ef 80 w do la 181 St en ef Bronx, S
me ilaman fes puede declr como transmiten y puedo darfes of nombro dof dueiie, Ademas en ese mlsmo
edificls transimiten dos estaclones mus, Radlo Activa 94.9 FM, Rika FM 94,8 y Ia Mexlganlssima 106,1, Les
emisoras trabajan usando {os 1P, O 5, mpsmlsores estan en otro edificlo y fa conectan a través do

1P, Lismenme para darle otros datos,] : 2 Z 3

https://ebats.foc.gov/ebats/consumerlopen2000.action7complaint_key=11-C00350778-1 &f... 7/16/2012



Translation by Gloria Tijerina Verduzco:

This radio station transmits illegally. They go on air starting at 5:00 PM. They are
located at 80 W 181 Street, Bronx NY. If you call me | can explain how they transmit
and | can provide the name of the owner. :

Also in the same building there are two more stations transmitting, Radio Activa FM
94.9, Rika FM 94.5 and La Mexicanissima FM 106.1.

These radio stations transmit by using IP, that is, the transmitters are in another building
and are connected by the IP. Please call me and | will provide more data after verifying
that it's you.







Exhibit 2
(7 pages)



) notes 030512,txt
03/05/12 - MDDF7 ’

Agent: Luis salazar & Luis Roman

Pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,

94.9 MHz

Location of TX: New York, NY

Agents LS and LR monitored, DFed
and measured the stations )
transmitting out of the building
at 260 Audubon avenue (or building
next to it). Since the DFing was
done at the hours of operation at
ni?ht, the invenstigation will
follow at a Tlater day to try to
Tocate the antennas of the three
pirate stations transmitting out
of this Tocation: 94.5 MHz, 94.9
MHz and 95.3 MHz.The station on
106.1 MHz was not operating.

Measurements for 94.5 MHz (dBuv):
72.6, 74.1, 73.6, 69.6, 71.2

Measurements for 94.9 MHz (dBuv):
73.7, 73.0, 74.7, 68.5, 72.3

Location: intersection of Audubon
Avenue and W. 172nd Street,.
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Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

tise this column for entries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 3/5/12012

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94.50 MHz

Cluster 1 measurement: , 72.6 dBpVY
Cluster 2 measurement: 74,1 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 73.6 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement: 69.6 dBpV
Cluster 5 measurement: 71.2 dBpV

Distance from measurement

; o 1851.706 ft. Distanee QK
point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m . 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss 1.5 dB '
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = [f above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 ="ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results'= 1,0




Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGH]

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 3/5/2012
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Fleld Agent, Other Values Are Calculated, Agents: LR
For F12 = ANY OFF
Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings V)
In WMHz {valid for 88 to 108 MHz)
94.50 Reading 1 4266
, Reading 2 5070
Distance From Reading 3 4786
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 3020
1,852 Reading 5 __'B__Q__;’:_'l_

Distance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field
Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
(nv) From Data Entry Values (n¥Y/m)
4,155 2.82 11,709
Distance From Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters Allowance in Favor of the Subject
{meters) (nV/m) (nV/m)
564.4 2,202,873 1,455,424
Accuracy ' Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
At 3 Meters
(db and decimal) ' (nV/m) Times Legal Value
3.60 250.00 8,811
1.61
Put this value in the affadavit 2,202,873 (pV/m) extrapolated
(Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.) 8,811 times the legal value

Violation Confirmed

Note: Cable Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual ' FS6.xls (Rev 01/30/04)




Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Use this column Tor entries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 3/5/2012

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94,90 MHz
Cluster 1 measurement: 73.7 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement: 73 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 74.7 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement: 68.5 dBpV
Cluster 5 measurement: 72.3 dBpVY
Distance from measurement 1851.706 f. Distanee OK

point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss ; 1.5 dB
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

# = If above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 ="ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results' = 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGH1

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER~12-000011141 3/5/2012
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent. Other Values Are Calculated. Agents: LR

For Fi2 = ANT OFF

Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings (nv)
In MHz (valid for 88 to 108 NHz)
94.90 Reading 1 4842
: Reading 2 4467
Distance From Reading 3 5433
Antenna in Feet ‘ Reading 4 2661
1,852 Reading & 4121
Distance OK
Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field
Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
ny) From Data Entry Values (pV/m)
4,305 2.82 12,132
Distance From Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) (rY/m) (nV/m)
564.4 2,282,411 1,507,974
Accuracy Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
At 3 Meters X
{(db and decimal) (nV/m) Times Legal Value
3.60 250,00 9,130
1.51

Put this value in the affadavit
(Measured values,

2,282,411 (pV/m) extrapolated

9,130 times the legal value

extrapolated to 3 meters.)

Violation Confirmed

Note: Cahle Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual F86.xls (Rev 01/30/04)






Exhibit 3
(16 pages)



notes 061812.txt
06/18/2012 - MDFX1
Agent: Luis Salazar & Luis Roman
Pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94.9 MHz
Location of TX: New York, NY

Agents LS and LR monitored, DFed
and measured the stations
transmitting out of the building
at 1370 st. Nicholas Avenue.

The antennas were tidentified on a
halcony on the top floor of the
the building the DFing was

done at the hours they start
their operation on weekdays around
6:00 PMm,

Measurements for 94,5 mHz (dBuv):
72.1, 74.6, 73.1, 70.1, 69.7

Measurements for 94.9 MHz (dBuv):
73.2, 73.5, 74,2, 69.0, 71.8

Locatjon: intersection of Saint
Njcho1as avenue and w. 186 st.

The agents regquested assistance
from the management and the
superintendent Ramon Figueredo
scorted us to the top of the
building where pictures of the
antennas were taken thru windows
and from the roof.

Aagents knocked on the door of
apartment # 32N but no one
answered, The agents Jeft a Hand
pelivered Nouo on the door of the
apartment.

page 1
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Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Use this eolumn for enfries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: . Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 6/18/2012

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94,50 MHz

Cluster 1 measurement; 72.1 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement: 74.6 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 73.1 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement: : 70.1 dBpV
Cluster 5 measurement: 69.7 dBpV

Distance from measurement

. L 1851.706 ft. Distance OK
point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Mieter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss 1.5 aB
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = If above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in Results' = 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A7 FOOT HEIGHT

.Name Case Number Date
Raul de la-Rosa EB-NER-~12-000011141 6/18/2012
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent. Other Values Are Calculated. Agents: LR

For Fi2 = ANT OFF

Fundamenta! Frequency . Cluster Meter Readings V)

n MHz (valid for 88 to 108 MHz)
94.50 Reading 1 4027
Reading 2 5370
Distance From Reading 3 4519
Antenna in Feet ' Reading 4 3199
1,852 ' Reading 5 %

Distance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field
Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve . Strength
@Vv) : From Data Entry Values (uV/m)
4,034 2.82 11,369
Distance From Field Strength . Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Melers Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) (nV/m) (uV/m)
564.4 2,138,941 1,413,184
Accuracy Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
At 3 Meters X
(db and decimal) (pVim) Times Legal Value
3.60 250.00 8,556
1.51
Put this value in the affadavit 2,138,941 (uV/m) extrapolated
(Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.) 8,556 times the legal value

YViplation Confirmed

Notle: Cable Altenuation Callbrated per Z-Tech Manual F86.xls (Rev 01/30/04)



Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Use this colunmm for enfries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 6/18/2012

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94.90 MHz

Cluster 1 measurement: 73.2 dBpY
Cluster 2 measurement: ' 73.5 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 74.2 dBpVY
Cluster 4 measurement: 69 dBuvY
Cluster 5 measurement: 71.8 dBpV

Distance from measurement

. L 1851,706 ft. Distance QK
point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss 1.5 dB
TOTAL CORRECTION # 9.0 Fi2 MUST = ANT OFF

* = If abave corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in Results' = 1.0




Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A7 FOOT HEIGHT

: Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-1 2-000011141 6/18/2012
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Fleld Agent. Other Values Are Calculated, Agents: LR

For F12 = ANT OFF

Fundamental Frequency Cluster Neter Readings (V)

In MHz {valid for 88 to 108 MHz) .
94.90 Reading 1 4571
Reading 2 4732
Distance From Reading 3 5129
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 2818
1,852 Reading 5 %

Distance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor . Measured Field
Reading _ For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
@v) From Data Entry Values (pV/m)
4,228 2.82 11,916
Distance From Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters . Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) (nV/m) (p¥Y/m)
564.4 ‘ 2,241,803 1,481,145
Accuracy Legal Part 15 Limit Operation s -
At 3 Meters ) X
(db and decimal) (pVm) Times Legal Value
3.60 250.00 8,967
1.51
Put this value in the affadavit 2,241,803 (pV/m) extrapolated
{Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.) 8,967 times the legal value

Violation Confirmed

Nole: Cable Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual FSB.xis {Rev 01/30/04)
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Exhibit 4
(3 pages)



FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
ENFORCEMENT BUREAU
201 Varick Street, Suite 1151, New York, NY 10014-4870
TEL; (212) 337-1865 B FAX: (212) 620-3718

FAX TRANSMISSION

To: Jackie
Managem ent office of:
1370 St Nicholas Ave.
New York, NY 10033

Fax: (212)795-9636
FrOM: Luis Roman

FCC - Enforcement Bureau — New York Office
DATE: June 19, 2012

Hi Jackie according to our earlier conversation on the phone I am sending you this fax
with our request.

The FCC is conducting a Federal Government investigation,

We need the name of the people who lease the following apartments at:
1370 ST NICHOLAS AVE

NEW YORK, NY
Apartments: 32

Thanks, for your cooperation.

Luis Roman

Electronics Engineer

Federal Communications Commission
201 Varick Street

Suite 1151

New York, NY 10014

212-337-1564

luis.roman(@fcc.gov

Non-Public Information
IF THERE IS A PROBLEM WITH THIS TRANSMISSION, PLEASE CALL
(212) 337-1865.



-

@e/i9/2012 12:16 2126203718 ‘FCC PAGE ©1/81

FEDERAL COMMUMCATIONS COMMISSION
ENFORGEMENT BUREAU
201 Varick Street, Suite 1151, New York, NY 100944870
TEL: (292) 2474065 B FAX: (212) 620-3718

S o

Management office of:
1370 St Nicholas Ave.
New York, NY 10033 ;

Fax: (23.2)795~9°336//WD .
\\’%’M Luis Romén

FCC - Enforcement Bureau —New Vork Office

FAX TRANSMISSION

DATE! June 19, 2012

i Jaokie according to out carlier conversation on the phone I am gending you this fax
with our request.

The FCC is conducting a Federal Government investigation.

We need the name of the people who lease the following apartments ati
1370 ST NICHOLAS AVE

NEW York, NY 10033

Apartments: 32T

Thanks, for your coopexation.

Luis Roméo

Electronics Engineer

Federal Commupications Commission
201 Varick Street

Suite 1151

New York, NY 10014

212-337-1564

Tuls.roman@fec. gov

"Non-Public Information

IF THERE IS A PROBLEM WITH THIS TRANSMUISSION, PLEASE CALL

7999 371868,

J00°d 9£36 964 TIT "EDT440 INIWEDVNYH 08Y P91 2102-92-RAD
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Exhibit 5
(2 pages)



Page l of 1

Unknown

From: David Dombrowski

Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2012 8:43 AM

To: Luis Roman

Cc: Kevin Doyle

Subject: FW; NYC Pirate RIKA 94.9

Luls

Here is information on an FM pirate in your jurisdiction. The complainant has notified us in the past (back
in 2009) about a network of stations in PA and NY. We shut the station down In Hazleton NY. Looks like

the operators of the NY station have ties to Hazleton, PA. The complainant observed their vehicle in
town.

I will be forwarding you three other emails with additional info.

Dave

Sent: Tuesday, May 01, 2012 11:50 F
To: David Dombrowskl
Subject: NYC Pirate RIKA 94,9

Mr. Dombrowski,
[ came across this information about a Latin music station on 94.9 in the Brooklyn area. You
can forward all of this to the NY FCC Field office for investigation, There will be a couple of
messages that were posted on the WTFDA (Worldwide TV-FM DX Association) bulletin board.
1 saw their car parked in Hazleton and started to ask a few questions about it. The car isared
Kia Soul PA license number HHZ-8498. The logo on the back of the car is RIKA 94.9 FM, The
side of the car has "ACTIVA FM" "TU TIENES EL CONTROL" " New York, NY", It seemed
a bit odd that a NYC radio station would have a car with PA plates. Also there is a full power
Class B station on 94,7 WEME in Newark, NJ, It seems unlikely the FCC would license even a
translator on 94.9 in the NY City area.
I had contacted you about another unli
in April 2009 whi later

censed FM operator on 92.5 in Hazleton and Wilkes-
hut d after your investigation

711912012



Luis Roman

From: FCC Operations Center

Sent; Wednesday, July 11, 2012 8:28 AM
To: Luis Roman

Cc: FCC Operations Center

Subject: RE: investigation on a pirate station
Luis,

The following is what | have for PA HHZ-8498:

Raul A. Delarosa

26 Gore St

Wilkes Barre, PA 18705
Luzerne County

Veh, |D: KNDJT2A22A7049619
Veh. Make: Kia/2010
Na color listed for vehicle

Thank you,

Ror LOoVInS

Watch Officer

Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau
Federal Communications Commission

(202) 418-1122

From: Luis Roman

Sent: Wednesday, July 11, 2012 7:30 AM
To: FCC Operations Center

Subject: investigation on a pirate station

Good morning
We are conducting an investigation on a pirate station.
And we need to know the owner of a red Kia Soul with license plate from PA HHZ-8498.

Could you help us with the information needed?

Thanks,

" Luis E. Roman C.

Electronics Engineer

Federal Communications Commission
Enforcement Bureau

New York Field Office

201 Varick Street

Suite 1151

New York, NY 10014

Phone: 212-337-1564

Cell: 917-280-3157

Fax: 212-620-3718






Exhibit 6
(7 pages)




02/02/13 - MDFX1

Agent: Luis Salazar & Luis Roman
Pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94,9 MHz '

Location of TX: New York, NY

Agent LR monitored, DFed and

measured the stations

transmitting out of the building

at 260 Audubon Avenue (or building

next to it).

The blue crates hiding the antennas

were still there and at 10:30 AM

there was neither transmission nor

carrier on the air on either 94.5

MHz or 94.9 MHz.

The agent kept monitoring the

stations which started transmissions

at 3:00 PM.

The agent took field strength

measurements of both stations,

The streaming on line was different

than the transmission over the air.

On the streamed programming they had
. a song repeated over and over again
j for approximately 30 minutes.

Recordings were made.

Measurements for 94,5 MHz (dBuV):
72.8,73.9,73.8,69.4,71.4

Measurements for 94.9 MHz (dBuV):
73.0, 73.7,74.0, 69.2, 71.6

Location: intersection of Audubon
i Avenue and W, 172nd Street.

! ﬁle:///CVUsers/luis.roman/Deskt0p/Rika%20FM%2094.5%2OMHz/Exhibits/Iatest%ZOexhibits/notes%20020213.txt[4/1/2013 9:56:41 PM]
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Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Meter Type:

Case Name:

Case number:

Date:

Agents:

Frequency, MHz:
Cluster 1 measurement:
Cluster 2 measurement:
Cluster 3 measurement;
Cluster 4 measurement:
Cluster 5 measurement:

Distance from measurement
point to transmitting antenna:

Use this eolummn foy enfries

R-507 << Bnter FIM-71 or R-507
Raul de 1a Rosa
EB-NER-12-000011141
2/2/2013
LR
94,50 MHz
72.8 dBpV
73.9 dBpV
73.8 dBuV
69.4 dBpV
714 dBpV

1851.706 ft. Distance QK

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

Authorized Field Strength at
3 meters is:

ANTENNA FACTOR db/m
Cable Loss
TOTAL CORRECTION *

250 pV/Meter

7.5 db/m
1.5 dB
9.0 F12MUST = ANT OFF

* = |f above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results' = 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A7 FOOT HEIGHT

Name ’ Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 2/2/2013
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Fleld Agent, Other Values Are Calculated. Agents: LR
) For F12 = ANT OFF
Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings V)
In MHz (valid for 88 to 108 MiHz)

94.50 Reading 1 4365

Reading 2 4955

Distance From Reading 3 4898
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 2951

1.852 Reading 5 3715

Distance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field

Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
@Y From Data Entry Values (nV/m)
4,177 2.82 11,772
Distance From Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) (pV/m) (uV/m)
564.4 2,214,673 1,463,220
Accuracy Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
! At 3 Meters X
(db and decimal) (pV/m) Times Legal Value
3.60 250.00 8,859
1.61°

Put this value in the affadavit
(Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.)

2,214,673 (uV/m) extrapolated

8,859 times the legal value

Note: Cable Altenuation Callbrated per Z-Tech Manua!

o,

Vioiation Confirmed

FSB.xls (Rev 01/30/04)



Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Use this coluwvm for entries

Meter Type: R-507 << Bnter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: , 2/2/2013

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94.90 MHz

Cluster 1 measurement: 73 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement: 73.7 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: : 74 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement: 69.2 dBpV
Cluster 5 measnrement: 71.6 dBpV

Distance from measurement

; . 1851.706 ft. Distance (3
point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss 1.5 dB
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = If ahove corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results' = 1.0




Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A7 FOOT HEIGHT

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 2/2/2013
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Fleld Agent, Other Vaiues Are Calcuiated, Agenis: LR

For F12 = ANT OFF

Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings rv)

In MHz (valid for 88 to 108 MHz)
94.90 Reading 1 4467
Reading 2 4842
Distance From Reading 3 5012
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 2884
1,852 : Reading 5 %

Pistance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field
Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
nv) From Data Entry Values (pV/m)
4,201 2.82 11,841
Distance From : Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) (wV/m) (uV/m)
564.4 2,227,648 1,471,792
Accuracy Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
At 3 Meters X
(db and decimal) . (pV/im) Times Legal Value
3.60 250.00 8,911
1.51
Put this value in the affadavit 2,227,648 (uV/m) extrapolated
{Measured values,
axtrapolated to 3 meters.) 8,911 times the legal value

Viplation Contirmed

Note: Cable Altenuation Callbraled per Z-Tech Manual FS6.xls {Rev 01/30/04)
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AF1 (Audio File.1)

Audio Files on enclosed CD

RIKA1.3gp - Recording 1 of RIKA FIVI 94.5 - 02/02/13 - 00:00:02 (Spanish) “..en la pagina web
RIKAFM.com...”

RIKAZ.3gp - Recording 2 of RIKA.FIV1 94.5 - 02/02/13 - 00:00:27 {Spanish) “..estas en sintonia
con RIKA FM la emisora oficial de los taxistas...”

RIKA3.3gp - Recording 3 of RIKA FV1 94,5 - 02/02/13 — Repeating same song over and over for
like 30 minutes.

ACTIVA1.3gp - Recording of ACTIVA FM 94.9 - 02/02/13 - did not mention ACTIVA FM.







Exhibit 7
(7 pages)



notes 050313.txt

05/03/13 - MDFX1

Agent: Luis Roman

Pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94.9 MHz

Location of TX: New York, NY

Agent LR monitored, DFed

and measured the stations
transmitting out of the building

at 1370 saint Nicholas Avenue.

94.5 MHz was transmitting the same
program over the air and streaming
on ;ine (with a delay of about 20
sec).

94.9 MHz was transmitting only over
the air.

Measurements for 94.5 MHz (dBuv):
60.1, 62.5, 64.3, 63.4, 61.9

Measurements for 94.9 MHz (dBuv):
68.4, 67.9, 66.3, 65.8, 69.7

Location: intersection of Audubon
Avenue and W. 172nd Street.

page 1
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Potomae FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

tise this column for entries

Meter Type: - R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 5/3/2013

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94.50 MHz
Cluster 1 measurement: 60.1 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement; 62.5 dBpY
Cluster 3 measurement: 64.3 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement; 63.4 dBpV
Cluster 5 measurement: 61.9 dBpV
Distance from measurement ‘ 1851.706 ft. Distance O

point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss : 1.5 dB
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = [f above corrections are stared in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results'= 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGH]1

Name
Raul de la Rosa

Case Number
EB-NER-12-000011141

Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent, Other Values Are Calcujated. Agents:

Date
5/312013
LR

For F12 = ANT OFF

Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings ((A)]
In MHz (valid for 88 to 108 MHz)
94.90 Reading 1 2630
Reading 2 2483
Distance From "Reading 3 2065
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 1950
1,852 Reading 5 ‘3:9___5i§

Distance DK

Average Cluster Meter
Reading

rvY)
2,437

Distance From
Antenna
(meters)

564.4
Accuracy

(db and decimal)

3.60
1.51

Antenna Factor
For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve
From Data Entry Values
2.82

Field Strength
Extrapolated to 3 Meters
(nV/m)
1,282,021

Legal Part 15 Limit
At 3 Meters
(wV/m)

250.00

Measured Field
Strength

nY/m)

6,868

Py

Field Strength With Accuracy
Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(rY/m)

853,630

Operation Is
X
Times Legal Value

5,168

(Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.)

Put this value in the affadavit

1,292,021 (pV/m) extrapolated

5,168 times the legal value

Note: Cable Attenuation Callbrated per Z-Tech Manual

Viglation Confirmed

FS8.xls (Rev 01/30/04)




Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Sereen

Use this column for entries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM~71 or R-507
Case Name: Raul de la Rosa ‘
Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141
Date: _ 5/3/2013
) Agents: LR
Frequency, MHz: 94.90 MHz
Cluster 1 measurement: 68.4 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement: 67.9 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 66.3 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement; 65.8 dBpV
Cluster 5 measurement: 69.7 dBuV

Distance from measurement

; o 1851.706 ft. Distance OK
point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss 1.5 dB"
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

% = |f above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results'= 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGH1

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 51312013
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent. Other Values Are Calculated, Agents: LR
For F12 = ANT QFF
Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings (nv)
In WiHz {valid for 88 to 108 MHz)

94.50 Reading 1 1012

Reading 2 1334

Distance From ~ Reading 3 1641
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 1479

1,852 Reading 5 &i@

Distance QK

Average Cluster Meter
Reading

(»v)
1,342

Distance From
Antenna
{meters)

564.4
Accuracy

(db and decimal)

3.60
1.61

Antenna Fabtor Measured Field

For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
From Data Entry Values (1V/m)
2.82 ' 3,782

Field Strength With Accuracy
Allowance in Favor of the Subject

Field Strength
Extrapolated to 3 Meters

(1V/m) (¥/m)
711,498 470,082
Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is

At 3 Meters. X
(nV/m) Times Legal Value

250.00 2,846

Put this value in the affadavit
{Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 melers.)

711,498 (nV/m) extrapolated

2,846 times the legal value

Note: Cable Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual

Vipjation Confirtned

FS6.xls (Rev 01/30/04)
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AF2 (Audio File.2)

Audio Files on enclosed CD

RIKA4.3gp - Recording of RIKA FIVI 94.5 - 05/03/13 - 00:00:08 (Spanish) "...718-305-4154 es la
linea telefénica en New York RIKA 94.5, la que tu controlas...”

ACTIVAZ2.3gp - Recording of ACTIVA FiV 94.9 - 05/03/13 - 00:03:25 (Spanish) “..solo en ACTIVA
94.9 FM y la animacién bestial de Miguel el castigador ACTIVA 94.9, ti tienes el control...”







Exhibit 8
(3 pages)



notes 022912.txt
02/29/12 - MDFX1
Agent: Luis salazar & Luis Roman
pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94.9 MHz and 106.1 MHz
tocation of studio: Bronx, NY

on February 29, 2012 agents LS and
LR went to the studio's address

80 w 181 st. Bronx, NY 10453,

The place was closed, the agents
took pictures of the front of the
building and a sign on the entrance
door that reads “RIKA MEDIA GROUP,
LLC INFO: 347-603-0229 80 WEST 181
ST BRONX, NY 10453",

A worker from a tire shop Felix

Flat Fixed besides the studio stated
that they only work late in the
afternoon and at night on weekdays
and weekends and that they have like
a DI and music recording studio.

pPage 1



Pictures taken in front of the studio on February 29, 2012.
80 West 181 Street Bronx, NY 10453

Metal
» door
closed
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Exhibit 9
(1 page)



notes 062612
06/26/12 - MDFX1
Agent: Luis salazar & Luis Roman
Pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz
and 94.9 MHz
Location of studio: Bronx, NY

on June 26, 2012 agents LS and
LR went to the studio's address
80 w 181 st. Bronx, NY 10453.

No activity was noticed as the
previous visit on February 29,
2012,

A mail woman was ﬁassing by and
the agents asked her few question
about the business "Rika Media
Group, LLC".

she stated that: before she used
to get inside the building to
Teave the mail and she saw Tike
a music recording studio inside.
But lately the place is closed
during her working hours_so she
was told to drop the mail at the
tire shop "Felix Fix Flat" next
to 1t.
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Exhibit 11
(4 pages)



Dec 07 2012 15:22 Vonage . 17322025221 page 1

FCC ~ New York

Federal Communications Commission
201 Varick Strest

New York, NY 10014-4870

Re: Subject Telophone No.: (718) 305-4164
Subpoena No.: EB-FIELDNER-12-00001141

Daar Mr. Roman:

This Iz in réspdr]ée to the above-mentioned Letter of Invastigation, Issued by the
Federal Commurications Commission, dated November 08, 2012 (the “Letter of -
Investigation”). Attached hereto, please find the rsquested information from Vonage,

The address or addresses produced herewith reflect eliher the inftial address
where the equipment was shipped and/or the billing address provided by the subscriber
currently listed in Vonage's records. Vonage does hot use this address jor biling

- purposes, as all biling is automatic through the credit card provided by the subscribar,
As such, the address or addresses in the subscriber's recerds may not reflect the current
residence of the subseriber, the current location of any communications equipment, or
the origination of any VolP communications, Vonage doss not, and cannot, verify that
these addresses are current, accurate or for that matier even exist, .

The Information provided pum‘uant to- this request Is stored electronically.
Accordingly, any documents provided herewith were created for the limited purpose of
complylng with this Letter of Invéstigation, .

If you should have any additional questions or concems, pleass feal fres to
contact ma for further assistance,

Jﬁl ailumad
ramel Sumner
Compliance Specialist i
Vonage Holdings Corp.
732-231-6705 (Office)
732-202-5221 (Fax)
Tramel. Sumnar@vonage.com

23 Main Street o Holmdel, New Jersey 07733
Tel: 732-528-2600 o Fax: 732-202-5221



page 2

173220258221

22 Vonage

Dec 07 2012 15

Account Prafile
Subject Telaphone Mo.- (718) 3054154 (1005706370)
Search Parameters: Novembar 08, 2092 to Decamber 07, 2012

17183054154




page 3

17322025221

22 Vanage

.

Dec 07 2012 15

Billing Profile
Subjsct Telephone No.: (718) 305-4154 (1 005706370)
Search Parameters: November 08, 2012 to December 07, 20

AT ST AT

s



17322025221 v page 4

Dec 07 2012 15:22 Yonage
NO. 938 P.3 e

NOV, B,2812 11:58RM FCC WTB

SUBPOENA CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

a8 .,

[ am responsible for the roview of materals to iden : :% ti the Federal

Communications Commission's  subpoena, dated Wﬁf ) % y ' in

1 cortify that I recelved and accepied sexvice of the foregoing.
subpoena, All materials in the posssssion, custody, and control of the passon or business to
which the subpoena is direcied that are covered by the subpoena have bsen produced and given
to a representative of the FCC, and, if coples were given instead of originals, all materials were
accurately and complerely copled. No materigls have been withield except those that have been
identified to the FCC’s representative, who has also besn given an explanation of the reason why

. they were not produced,

1 declare, under penalty of pmury under the laws of the United States of America,
that the foregoing is triee and comect,

ﬁ:cecuzed on l %/Dw %O' 91_ , 2012

[

oSS LY Gl

oo _(IMPLIBNCE CHEINIGTTL
i e TRAMEL SUMNER
o Wi Gal
waisss_HOLMDEL, NT (79
teghone e _(‘15) 301105

st TRRMEL. 2UMNERW VINAZE. COM
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Rika 94.5

Negacio Jocsl

LIVE

M Brorx

oY A 2 perzonas les gusia eslo

&, 10 personas estuvieron agqui

% Meyormente nublado 7 °C

Lugares cerca de Rika 94.86

92nd Street Y

Estuals 02 5es £508n01035 - S4l5. 02 convlzrios - Crgsaizasiin comuniizdz

9 1395 Laxngton fvenus, Haovs York 16128

sir 829,887 pervomay bes puats exio

@ §.621 pervnass axtelzron zqu

8 Feurdsd In 1874 by = group of viionary Jewish lzzders, 92nd Syest ¥tz gro.,

kasike mofongo house (official website)
Reslsurant - Loung2

9 2458 woubster zve (135th sbese, Brare $0458
oy & 545 persanas lex guze exdo
% 2,620 prrspazs astuvieron squd

e e

Worris Park
Comunidad
Q@ Narris Park Sy end Mzrris Purk grea., Tronx L0438, 10462

o A 4565 prroanas les gueis exln
W 2,219 perzoass =stuvieron zqui

Cliffside Park

Ciudzo

vl 4 1123 prroanas fes gusie exlo

& 9381 perspaas =stuvieron zqe

8 <p><beQiffrics Parke/b> ise 4y hru!:"lch::,“.\~Ii':‘-§l998939451&14’7":'ﬁcv:uu...

8 Per more informatizn :doot Mais Purk plzeze gisitihttze fanavikip=die ooglulki, .

[ 5 Me gusta .

l 1 Me gusta ]

¢Quieras hacer clicen
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pagina?
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Bing Maps

Print this page In & mora readable formal; Click Print next to the upper-right comer of the map.

: Location provided by
wniBing on Facebook v

44/ Actual location -
&7 of the Studio

©2013

© ¥

©2012:Roda..,

Page 1 of 2

http://www.bing.com/maps/default.aspx?v=28&pc=FACEBK&mid=81 00&rtp=adr.%7Epos.40.856957173487 ... 3/28/2013
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Exhibit 13
(1 page)



02/28/13 - MDFX1

Agent: Luis salazar & Luis Roman
pPirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94,9 MHz

Location of studio: Bronx, NY

LR & LS went to the site of the
studio at 80 w 181 Street Bronx,
NY 10453.

They monitored the stations 94.5
MHz and 94.9 MHz which starting
transmitting at 5:00 PM,

Minutes before that the agents
observed about 8 people getting
inside and they didn’t come out
except one of them that got out
several times to talk on his cell
phone and smoke a cigarette,

The agents noticed that the
business has expanded and they
took over the tire repair that
was Tlocated next to them before.
There is also a store that sells
audio equipment, cell_phones and
electronics in general which is
part_of the entire business
‘tnfinit Sound”,

Three phone numbers were
advertised on their sign outside:
646-377-0958

347-372~9365

347-603-0229-

(the last one also_shown on the
door to the front left entrance).
They have a camera at one of the
entrances, the one with the main
traffic.

The agents observed three vehicles

coming at different times between
5:30 PM and 7:00 PM and their
model/plate numbers were:

Jeep/NY IDL6777

Taxi/T601268C

Honda/NY FSMG6321

The agents walked by the entrance

several times to see if they could

see or hear something, but
ever%thing seems to be happening
in the back of the store.

The program from 5:00 PM to 7:00

PM was conducted by Many Rodriguez

& Freddy antonio and the program
that started at 7:00 PM was
conducted by Jimenez publicidad
(one of the DIJs).

notes 022813.txt

Page 1






Exhibit 14
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notes 030413.txt
03/04/13 - office
Agent: Luis Roman
pirate Investigation: 94.5 MHz,
94.9 MHz
phone conversation with Alberto
payero

Agent Luis Roman called back
Alberto Payero (646-353-2155)
who left a voice mail in relation
to another pirate station on 93.7
MHz +in Paterson, NJ.
He stated:
"rhere is a pirate in
paterson, NJ operating on 94.3 MHz,
which has the same programing
transmitted on 94.5 MHz - RIKA-FM
in NY.
The station belongs to Wellington
Espinal who was deported 1ike 4
years ago and he is back_1in us.
He is co-owner with Ariel Sanchez
owner of 94.5 MHz (RIKA-FM) and
94.9 MHz (ACTIVA) transmitting in
NY and with the studios in 80 w
181 street Bronx, Ny 10453.
T was there last week and they have
three separated rooms for the three
stations they have.
They have the outside doors always
closed and the doors to enter the
studios with a code, only people
that work on those studios know it.
The address of their station 1in
paterson, N3 is 326 30 Street.
The antenna cannot be seen from the
street but I can take you there
personally and show it to you.
These people are boycotting all my
events in NJ and besides tgey have
threatened me with death if I say
something.
please do not mention my name
anywhere."

pPage 1






Exhibit 15
(2 pages)



Apple Community Broadcasting, Inc.
41 Kathleen Crescent :
Coram, NY 11727

Federal Communications Commission
Attn: Mr. Louis Roman

March 02,2013

Dear Mr. Roman,

As per our telephone discussion in the past regarding the interference from the illegal
broadcaster (pirate) in the Bronx broadcasting on 94.9fm, ] am writing to you because this same
pirate continues to increase his power and is wiping out the signal from translator W235BB
frequency 94.9mhz Hauppauge NY. This is the translator that we receive "off air" to rebroadcast
on our translator W268AN frequency 101.5 Plainview NY.,

We ask that you track down this pirate once again and remove the equipment that they
are using as they are not licensed to have It in use. We have the pirates cell phone # as we have
contacted him direct and have asked him to shut down this illegal operation. As well as
broadcasting illegally, he is selling air time to people and running commercials for a profit. | feel
the IRS should be contacted once he is caught as he should have to pay taxes on monies earned
that were not reported.

Please contact us at the below listed numbers should you need to discuss further.
Michael Celenza (631) 965-0816
Tammy Celénza (516) 429-8340

We thank you for your time and attention to this matter.
Sincerely,

Michael Celenza
President



Luis Roman

From: Michael Celenza <celenzacomm@optonline.net>

Sent: Monday, March 25, 2013 4:54 PM
To: Luis Roman
Subject: PIRATE BRONX 94.9

Hello Mr. Roman :

As per our conversation and my letter complaining about existing interference to the input signal of fm translator from a
pirate radio station on 94.9 mhz. coming from the Bronx area .Over last couple years we have done multiple things to
prevent this pirate from interfering with our signal from changing our antenna to realigning our antenna changing heights
and with our last attempt seems to have helped us with a combination of things but it seems to still be on the air and they
dont belong there about a year ago the pirate had given out a phone number for request and contest and | called 718-502-
9987 and had asked them to shut down his illegal operation and he hung up i tried a second time and he told me he '
leases this frequency from another guy which he gave me his number he said all he does is send his audio via a ip
address and the transmitter guy receives it and puts it on air from transmitter location | called transmitter guy up at 347-
B803-0229 his answering machine says you have reached Airiel Sanchez i had spoken to Mr. Sanchez 2 times and both
times he sald he would shut it down but seems like he increased power every attempt i called.| appreclate anything you
can do to eliminate this pirate

Thanks

Michael Celenza






Exhibit 16
(6 pages)



notes 120213.txt
12/02/13 - MDFX8 . )
Agents: Stephen Maguire & Luis Roman
pirate Investigation: 94.5 & 94.9 MHz
Location: New York, NY

on December 02, 2013 Agents Stephen

mMaguire and Luis Roman went to the

JTocation at 1370 saint Nicholas Avenue

New York, NY 10033 and observed that the
antennas were still on the top apartment
#32N but the were located in different
position than previously observed,

Agents went to the management office to

Tet them know that the agents will go

on top of the roof later on and the

needed somebody to deactivate the alarms
system when that is done.

Agents monitored the stations and they

both started to operate at 5:00 pm.

Agents went to 47 Boscobel Place, Bronx,

NY 10452 and took measurements:

94.5 MHz: 65.5, 68.6, 64.5, 68.9 & 66.3 dBuUv
94.9 MHz: 64.3, 62.2, 64.8, 67.1 & 68.9 dBuv
Agents went back to the building and went

on toF of the roof with an spectrum apalyzer
to make sure the stations were transmitting
out of the same apartment and that was
comfirmed.

page 1
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Potomac FIM-~71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

Use this column Tor entries

Meter Type: R-507 << Enter FIM-71 or R-507

Case Name: Raul de la Rosa

Case number: EB-NER-12-000011141

Date: 12/2/2013

Agents: LR

Frequency, MHz: 94,50 MHz
Cluster 1 measurement: 65.5 dBpV
Cluster 2 measurement: 68.6 dBpV
Cluster 3 measurement: 64.5 dBpV
Cluster 4 measurement: 68.9 dBpVY
Cluster 5 measurement: 66.3 dBpV
Distance from measurement 2967.152 ft. Distance OK

point to transmitting antenna:

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range
Authorized Field Strength at

3 meters is: 250 pV/Meter
ANTENNA FACTOR db/m 7.5 db/m
Cable Loss - 1.5dB
TOTAL CORRECTION * 9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = [f above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 = "ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results'= 1.0




Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

'AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGHT

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 12/2/2013
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent, Other Values Are Calculated, Agents: LR

. For F12 = ANT OFF
Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings ®v)

in MHz {valid for 88 to 108 MHz)
94.50 Reading 1 1884
' Reading 2 2692
Distance From Reading 3 1679
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 2786
2,967 Reading 5 &5

[Hstance OK

Average Cluster Meter Antenna Factor Measured Field
Reading For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve Strength
(nY) From Data Entry Values (1V/m)
2,221 2.82 6,260
Distance From Field Strength Field Strength With Accuracy
Antenna Extrapolated to 3 Meters Allowance in Favor of the Subject
(meters) ' (nV/m) (nV/m)
904.4 1,887,127 1,246,813
Accuracy . Legal Part 15 Limit Operation Is
At 3 Meters X
(db and decimal) (nV/m) Times Legal Value
3,60 250.00 7,549
1.51
Put this value in the affadavit 1,887,127 (pV/m) extrapolated
(Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.) 7,549 times the legal value

Vindation Confirmed

Nole: Cable Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual FS8.xls (Rev 01/30/04)



Potomac FIM-71 and Z-Tecnology R-507 Data Entry Screen

. Meter Type:

Case Name:

Case number;

Date:

Agents:

Frequency, MHz:
Cluster 1 measurement:
Cluster 2 measurement:
Cluster 3 measurement:
Cluster 4 measurement:
Cluster 5 measurement:

Distance from measurement
point to transmitting antenna:

Use this eolumn for entries

R-507 - << Enter FIM-71 or R-507
Raul de la Rosa
EB-NER-12-000011141
12/2/2013
LR

94,90 MiHz
64.3 dBpV
62.2 dBpV
64.8 dBpV
67.1 dBpV
68.9 dBpV

2967,152 ft, _ Distance OK

Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

Authorized Field Strength at
3 meters is:

ANTENNA FACTOR db/m
Cable Loss
TOTAL CORRECTION *

250 pViMeter

7.5 db/m
1.5 dB
9.0 F12 MUST = ANT OFF

* = [f above corrections are stored in Z-Meter, and Function 12 ="ON ANT"
then Total Correction = 0 dB/m and Antenna Factor in 'Results'= 1.0



Frequency is within the 88 - 108 MHz measurement range

AVERAGE OF FIVE CLUSTER MEASUREMENTS WITH R-507
"~ WITH MEASUREMENT ANTENNA AT A 7 FOOT HEIGH1

Name Case Number Date
Raul de la Rosa EB-NER-12-000011141 12/2/2013
Data Inside the Box Has Been Entered by the Field Agent, Other Values Are Calcuiated, Agents: LR

For F12 = ANT OFF

Fundamental Frequency Cluster Meter Readings ry)

In MHz (valid for 88 to 108 NiHz)
94.90 Reading 1 1641
Reading 2 1288
Distance From Reading 3 1738
Antenna in Feet Reading 4 2265
2,967 Reading 5 :2;___22

Distance OK

Average Cluster Meter
Reading

(nv)
- 1,943

Distance From
Antenna
(meters)

9044
Accuracy

(db and decimal)

3.60
1.51

Antenina Factor
For Z-Tech 7 Foot Curve

From Data Entry Values
2,82

Field Strength
Extrapolated to 3 Meters
(n¥Y/m)
1,651,254

Legal Part 15 Limit
At 3 Meters
(V/m)

250.00

Measured Field
Strength

Field Strength With Accuracy
Allowance in Favar of the Subject

(1¥/m)
1,080,973

Operation Is
X
Times Legal Value

6,606

Put this value in the affadavit
{Measured values,
extrapolated to 3 meters.)

1,651,254 (uV/m) extrapolated

6,605 times the legal value

Note: Cable Attenuation Calibrated per Z-Tech Manual

Violation Confirm

FS6.xls (Rev 01/30/04)
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